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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department of Transportation

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council February 16, 2022

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into a contract amendment with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, to increase the contract amount by
$75,000.00 from $1,260.484.00 to $1,335,484.00 for public transportation services in the Coos, Grafton,
and Carroll County regions, effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contract was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on June 15, 2021, Item #71. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal Year 2022:

FY 2022
04-96-96-964010-2916
Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $75.000.00
EXPLANATION

The Department has available, prior year carryover, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) COVID relief
funding and this amendment provides Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act
funding for the provision of public transportation services currently under contract. The CARES Act
funds will supplant annually apportioned FTA funding currently budgeted in the contract, allowing the
transit provider to be reimbursed at a 100% federal rate for eligible operating expenses. The CARES Act
funds will also reduce the amount of local funds necessary to carry out the project. thus providing some
relief to the transit provider and the local communities it serves. The overall project scope will remain
the same through the contract term.

The FTA apportioned COVID relief funding to all states to support operating, capital, and other
expenses generally eligible under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula Program to help mitigate
the effects of the pandemic on transportation services. The funds in this amendment will be used to
support rural public transit operating expenses. Amendments are also being submitted for Governor &
Executive Council approval for the other NH rural public transit providers; through these collective
amendments, NH's balance of rural public transit COVID relief funding will be fully programmed.

If Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING « 7 HAZEN DRIVE » P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: 603-271-2171  FAX: 603-271-7025 » TDD ACCESS: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 « INTERNET: WWW.NHDOT.COM



Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization providing rural public
transportation. including transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities. in Coos and Grafton
Counties as North Country Transit (NCT) and Carroll County as Carroll County Transit (CCT).

The amended Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on
file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative Services” Office, and
subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

L.+ A,

Victoria . Sheehan
Commissioner

Attachments



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

A
This Contract Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into this _\’_ day of fv_ﬂ., 2022, by
and between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Concord NH 03302-0483, (hereinafter referred to
as “State”) and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as “the
Contractor”), collectively referred to as (“the Parties”).

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 15, 2021, Item 71. (hereinafter referred to as “the Contract”);

WHEREAS, on Friday, March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a
National Emergency Concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) Outbreak, and on
Friday, March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of New Hampshire issued Executive Order
2020-4, an order declaring a State of Emergency due to COVID-19;

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 Outbreak impacts the services provided under the Contract;

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Contract as provided in this Amendment;
and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed
by both Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Section 1.8, “Pricc Limitation” of the P-37 form is amended to read ($1,335,484.00)

2. Amended Exhibit B, Budget, B.1 be amended to include an additional $75,000.00
of Federal FTA CARES Act funds for the net operating expenses (total operating
expenses less revenues) for a revised contract price of $1,335,484.00;

a. Table below

3. This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Contract, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall remain in
full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.



EXHIBIT C

BUDGET (REVISED)
Amend.
Tri-County Community Action Orig. Orig. Orig. Amend. SFY 2223
Program SFY 2022 | SFY2023 |SFY 22-23 Total| SFY 2022 el
FTA SECTION 5311
Coos & Grafton Counties I
Administration $69,100.00(  $66,500.00 $135,600.00 $0.00]  $135,600.00|
Capital Preventive Maintenance $29,100.00(  $28,000.00 $57,100.00 $0.00 $57,100.00|
Capital ADA $0.00] $0.00 $0.00 $0.00) $0.
Operating $166,000.00]  $132.200.00 $298,200.00|  $28,000. $326,200.00)
Sub Total Coos & Grafion Countles | $264,200.60| $226,700.00]  $490,900.00| $28,000.00]  $518,900.00
Carroll County
Administration $61,000.00]  $59,000.00 $120,000.00 $0.00{  $120,000.00]
Capital Preventive Maintenance $22,400.00 $21,700.00 $44,100.00} $0.00] $44,100.00|
Capital ADA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00) $0.00|
Operating $53,200.00]  $42,500.00 $95,700.00]  $47,000.00]  $142,700.00
Sub Total Carroll County $136,600.00] $123,200.00|  $259,800.00 $47,000.00] $306,800.00
Total FTA 5311 Funding $400,800.00| $349,900.00]  $750,700.00| $75,000.00| $825,700.00
State Operating Funds
Coos & Grafton Counties $8,696.00 $8,696.00 $17,392.00| $0.00 $17,392.00
Carroll County $8.696.00{  $8,696.00 $17,392.00f $0.00) $17,392.00|
Total State Ope rating Match $17,392.00| $17,392.00 $34,784.00 $0.00|  $34,784.00
FTA Section 5310 RCC
Contracted Services $115,089.00]  $115,089.00| $230,178.00 $0.00  $230,178.00f
Mobility Management Activities $72.411.00|  $72.411.00| $144.822.00 $0.00]  $144,822.00
| Regional Mobility Manager $50,000.00(  $50,000.00(  $100,000.00 $0.00]  $100,000.
Total FTA 5310 RCC Funds $237,500.00| $237,500.00]  $475,000.00 $0.00|  $475,000.00
Tota Federal (FTA) Funds $638,300.00| $587.400.00| $1,225,700.00| $75,000.00| $1,300,700.00
Total State Funds $17,392.00|  $17,392.00 $34,784.00 $0.00]  $34,784.00
Total Contract Funds $655,692.00| $604,792.00| $1,260,484.00{ $75,000.00| $1,335,484.00
Total Two-Year Contract Funds $1,335,484.00

b. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands to the date first-written
above.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

By: A CEO Date: 6\’/ I{/<99~

Print Name and Title

By: *’“"//m/  Date: 9/3(/3133-

Print Name and Title

Patrick C. Herlihy
_ Director
Approved by Auon'i‘n':’{'&"ﬁ'éﬂé’?al‘"‘ and Transit
By: _Jumdy O Moy Date: 3/%#/z022
Print Name and Title [

Approved by Governor and Council

G &C Item number: G &C Meeting Date: o N



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 further certily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020
Certificate Number: 0005362631

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire.
this Sth day of May A.D. 2021,

Do Lo

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

‘BF ) o , hereby certify that:
(Name of th{J lected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of __Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
(Corporation/LLLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on M;ﬁ*“ ~,20.2) , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard , Randall Pilotte___ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. N

)

(i N
Dated:_ 911 |2032 X0 A LOw ‘f"}/
Signature of Elecfed Officer '
Name:
Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 133090A6-BB6C46E4-BOB3-0D677720CB24

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

19FY 21 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the “Corporation™)
takes the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte and Chief Programs Officer
(CPO) Kristy Letendre acting as a designee of the CEO, are hereby authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into contracts with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and
any other parties as deemed necessary and to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments and amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deemed
necessary, desirable or appropriate for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and
effective until June 30%, 2022.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May 25t.

2021
Docusigned by:
By: {\lﬂ"“‘dﬁﬁﬂﬂ'ﬂw

OB AE ODaBE

Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

Doculigned by

By: [ Sung Seus

Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
06/28/2021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

TMPORTANT: if the certificato hoidor I an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsod.
K SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terme and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in Heu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER m‘" Andrea Nicklin
FIAl/Cross Insurance . (803) 689-3218 [ Ak, no): (803) 645-4331
1100 Eim Street . Manch. certs@crossagency.com . ) T
- INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE ) NAIC &
Manchester NH 03101 msurara: Philadeiphia indemnily ins Co 18058
INSURED - ' - o NSURERS: Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc INSURER C ¢
30 Exchange Streel INSURER D : -
| INSURERE : - ) —
Barlin NH 03570 [ —
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  21-22 All lines REVISION NUMBER:
THIS 1S TO CERTIEY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM QR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. I i
| __TYPE OF INSURANCE m POLICY NUMBER ____Mm L
5¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCGURRENCE s 1.000,000
= MOAOE TORERTED | 300.000
J camswnce [ ocoun wm_‘u_m, ]
o MED EXP (Any 0ne erson) ] 6,000
A PHPK2203464 07/01/2021 | 0710112022 | personar saoy sy | s 1:000,000
| GEN AGGREGATE LIMIY APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
POLICY s D Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 3 3,000,000
| lomer Y . S
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLEUMIT |3 1,000,000
_)g ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per pavson) | 3 ¥
OWNED SCHEDULED o ORY BLANCY fPer odderD) |
A ] e ony scHep PHPK2203461 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 | BODIY INJURY (Per sccidan) | 3
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Porsccident] —
(I _ k1 I E— B (I R | —
UMBRELLA LIAB OCOUR 1 EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
- -- 4
A [5¢| excessuian g— PHUB774416 07/0112021 | 0710112022 | popeare s 2,000,000
pep | <] rerewnon s 10000 | T [ —— i - s ]
WORKERS COMPENSATION 5 e | G
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY i X e | 8" | YT
PR ey e i NIA HCHS20210000428 (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 | 02/01/2022 | ELEACHACCIOENT {8 ~*
(Mandatory In NH] 1 oisEAsE - EAempLovee | 3 1,000,000
duscribe under
|EBLRIPTION OF OPERATIONS boow o . R | EL OISEASE - poucyLmr | 3 1.000.000
i il ] Each Occurrence 1,000,000
a8
A " PHPK2203454 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 |Aggregate 3,000,000

SESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarke Schedule, mey be sttached I more space Is required)

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

New Hampshire Department of Transporiation Ralt and Transit
PO Box 483
7 Hazen Drive

Concord NH 03302-0483

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

1

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD
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ACORD’

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDD/YYYY)
01/26/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may raquire an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

GoMEACT " Andrea Nicklin

PRODUCER
FIAVCross Insurance Eﬁ £y (603)669-3218 | 8% oy (603)645-4331
1100 Elm Street ADDRESS: mgndl.perls@emﬁ Qcrossage __ﬂf"im B o
S INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE _Nace
Manchester NH 03101 " msurera: Philadeiphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED " wsurer@: Granile State Health Care and Human Services Self- 524292
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc INSURER C . ) )
30 Exchange Street |;t.;.unsn o ]
| INSURERE : ~
Berlin NH 03570 RIS
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  21-22All Lines 22-23 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
= = - ei g | i 1 POLICY EXP T o =
[t TEOFWSURANCE  [wan|wv|  POUCYNUMBER | gboNwwy, |sewoonvve|  umTs
xi COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| cuamsmoe [>] ocerm Phimses Enoscuroce, |8 100,000
, _ | MEDEXP (Anyonoperson) |8 5000
A PHPK2293454 07/01/2021 | 07/01/2022 | pensomar a0V iNOURY | 8 1:000,000
GENY AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE g SANR00
X poucy || TS Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 3 3,000,000
OTHER o 1l | I L
- GLE LiMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY i rpeh e EUs s 1,000,000
| any AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) H
| ownep SCHEDULED ¥ INJU o
A DMED v 1 ScHEOU PHPK2293461 07/01/2021 | O7/01/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Par sccident) | §
HIRED | NON-GwNED PROPERTY DAMAGE P
AUTOS ONLY | AUTOS ONLY (Per acadent) E
s
_|umereuALae | 3] occur EACH OGCURRENCE ¢ 2.000,000
A [>¢| excess uas i PHUB774416 070112021 | 07/01/2022 | scarecare ¢ 2.000,000
| oeo [ ] nerenmon s 10000 - s 13 .
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY i | B | [EF T
L et it o [N]|wra HCHS20220000058 (3a.) NH 01/01/2022 | 01/01/2023 | 4 FACHACCIDENT Bl
{(Mandatary in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § "°°°r‘?°°
%gr;;%ﬁi%Emuons below B i EL.DISEASE - POLICYLIMT | § 1,000,000
i

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Mﬂﬂ Remarks Schedule, may be attached If mora space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Depariment of Transportation Rail and Transil
PO Box 483
7 Hazen Drive

Concord NH 03302-0483

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Hatl TN A Aonay 2 I

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Daparimaent af Transpartiation
FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient Agency: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (s required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $13,693,396.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2020-007

Federal Award Date: 5/1/20

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.C.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No

NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:
Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.,

Subrecipient DUNS number: 73975708

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 38RUI & 61.ZU4
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Fi ederal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cos! rate as defined in §200.414

Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).



Depariment of Transpariatlon
FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contracvamendment):
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount: $75,000.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendments):
For FFY: 2022 Section: 5311 Amount; $1,335,484.00

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal

award.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial

statements as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: ’a\ l Qaf,,,,,
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2022 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant:_‘!}.___gmj},‘,ﬁgmmnm\\\ A S -meﬁc‘m’ nC.
The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here)
Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:
Category Certification
01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant
02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans
03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions
04 Lobbying
05 Private Sector Protections
06 Transit Asset Management Plan
07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing
08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing
16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations N

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the Applicant: ~ €\~ Cnm_‘rgiomv_v\um\q_ﬂd&/\ Pﬂxﬁrﬂv\ L S )

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me lo make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant’s behalf continues to represent il.

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has sclected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
“Program Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2022

rjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
on behglf ¢f the ApRljcant are true and accurate.

In signing this document, I
any other statements made

Signature ¥ Date: ,Qlj_m_
LTS BT

Name :S@mnf_ - \ Q@(‘CX " ,,( J;O _ Authorized Representative of Applicant
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THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Department af Transportation

Victoria F. Sheehan William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner Assistant Commiissioner
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council - June 7, 2021
State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. (Vendor 177195), Berlin, NH, for an amount not to exceed $1,260,484.00 for
public transportation services in the Coos, Grafton, and Carroll County regions, for the period of July 1,
2021 through June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 97% Federal
Funds and 3% General Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal
Year 2023, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal
Years if needed and justified.

FY 2022 FY 2023

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation

072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $638,300.00 $587,400.00
04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation

073-509074 Grants Non-Federal $17,392.00 $17,392.00

EXPLANATION

The Department has approved requests for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP) to assist in the provision of public transit service.
This agreement includes Federal COVID relief funding including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act enacted March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) enacted December 27, 2020, and the American Rescue
Plan (ARP) Act enacted March 11, 2021. The FTA apportioned funding to all states to support
operating, capital and other expenses generally eligible under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula
Program and Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program.
This request includes formula and relief funds from each of the aforementioned funding programs as
well as State general funds to assist in meeting the non-federal match requirements.

TCCATP is a private, non-profit organization providing rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Coos and Grafton Counties as North

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING « 7 HAZEN DRIVE « P.O. BOX 483 « CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE:; 603-271-2171 « FAX: 603-271-7025 « TDD ACCESS: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 « INTERNET: WWW.NHDOT.COM



Country Transit (NCT) and Carroll County as Carroll County Transit (CCT). The Department has
allocated federal and State funding for the FY 2022-2023 biennium based on prior funding levels,
applications received, and available funds. For the FY 2022-2023 biennium, TCCAP will receive
$750,700.00 of FTA Section 5311 funds, $475,000.00 of FTA Section 5310 funds, and $34,784.00 of
State general funds. Details relative to each funding program and TCCAP’s award of these funds are
outlined below. :

The Department’s proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes funds from the FTA Section
5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (Section 5311) that provides funds for capital, planning,
and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000.

The Department released a public notice on January 14, 2021 announcing the availability of FTA
Section 5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 01, 2021. The Department
received applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funds to each transportation
system. The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

_Transit System . T Applicant " |Average Score
Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. 89.30%
Sullivan County Transportation Southwestern Community Services 86.30%

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack-
Concord Area Transit Counties, Inc. 82.20%
Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.80%
VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community
(Keene) City Express Services 78.70%
North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.30%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Specialist reviewed, evaluated, and scored FTA Section 5311
applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials and the Department’s State
Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is provided below for reference:

- . . ‘Eyaluation'Criteria ; g ‘ ng_l!
i The proposed service effectively addresses a demonstrated community need, and/or the 15%
roposed service is a continuation or expansion of existing services.
2 The _applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its 15%
service.
3 [The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%
4. he ?pplication shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area: 10%
___%publlc, nonprofit, and for-profit.
5 The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and 10%
‘lotherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.
6 The applicant demonstrates effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of 10%

itransportation services.




he applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness, measured in
7 [ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New applicants must 15%
. [demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations and has a history of

: . . . . 10%
compliance with regulations and reporting requirements.

100%

Note: Every application met the Department’s criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2022-2023 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the transit systems.

TCCAP has also been awarded FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with
Disabilities Formula Program (Section 5310) funds in the amount of $475,000.00 for the FY 2022-2023
biennium. These funds will be used to provide expanded transportation services in the Region | Grafton-
Coos Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) service area. TCCAP will act as the lead agency to ensure
the provision of accessible demand response transportation services for seniors and individuals with
disabilities within the region and will support mobility management and strategic planning activities in
cooperation with the Region | RCC. i

The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula based on regional
populations of residents over 65 and those between the ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individual
RCC was responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, and prioritization and then
submitting one regional application for eligible Section 5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency. The Grafton-Coos RCC designated TCCAP as the lead agency for Region | and tasked TCCAP
with applying for Section 5310 RCC funds on behalf of Region 1. As required by FTA, this project is
identified in a locally developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan.

The Department’s proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes $200,000.00 of State Funds
per year to assist 10 public transit systems with matching FTA Section 5311 (Rural) or 5307 (Urban})
operating funds. The State Funds will be distributed to transit systems based on three ridership tiers and
will be distributed as follows:

Category | . Agency . [ Ridership | SFY 2022 | SFY 2023
Tier 1: Less than 50,000 Rides o _ ;
TCCAP- North Country Transit 26,319 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
TCCAP- Carroll County Transit 1,720 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Southwestern Community 18,007 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Services
VNA @ HCS (Keene City 23,014 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Express)
CART (an MTA service) 11,607 $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Subtotal $43,480.00 $43,480.00
Tier 2: 50,000 to 200,000 Rides Lo roo ‘
[ BMCAP- Concord Area Transit | 71,177 . $17,392.00 $17,392.00
Subtotal | $17,392.00 $17,392.00
Tier 3: Over 200,000 Rides -




Advance Transit 630,023 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
Manchester Transit Authority 309,983 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
(MTA)
City of Nashua (Nashua Transit) 340,677 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
COAST 330,800 $34,782.00 $34,782.00
Subtotal | $139,128.00 $139,128.00
Total Ridership Distribution $200,000.00 $200,000.00

Eight agencies operate the 10 public transit systems and will receive state operating funds in the
amounts listed above. The state funds will assist public transit systems in meeting the non-federal match
requirements and will provide financial support for New Hampshire’s public transit services. Non-
federal matching funds of at least 50% are required for transit operations. TCCAP operates two separate
public transit systems: Carroll County Transit and North Country Transit. Both Carroll County Transit
and North Country Transit are included in the Tier | ridership category; each will receive $8,696.00 per
year and a total of $17,392.00 for the biennium. TCCAP, as an agency, will receive a total of $34,780.00
for both transit systems for the SFY 2022-2023 biennium.

TCCAP, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining required non-
federal matching funds. Stimulus funding supported by FTA at 100% in the form of CARES, CRRSAA,
and ARP will be utilized by drawing against the CARES balance first and then CRRSAA and ARP
funds. If Federal Funds become unavailable, no additional general funds will be requested to support
this program.

The agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. Copies of the fully
executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State’s Office and the Department of Administrative

Services’ Office; and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

Lo v A

Victoria F. Sheehan
Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 11/7/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clcarly identified to the agency and agreed 1o in writing prior to signing the contract.

) AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Dcpartment of Transportation PO Box 483, 7 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03302-0483
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570-1911
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 04-96-96-964010-2916-072- June 30, 2023 $1,260,484.00
603-752-7001 500575
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency ) 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
| Michelle Winters, Administrator, Burcau of Rail & Transit 603-271-2468
1.11 Contra gnatuge [ 1.12 Neme and Title of Contractor Signatory I
o\e Wt e 0Faced

Date: 5 l IO Lma\ &mﬂvﬂ,% 6 & € &‘C(..U ¢
1.13 y Signature 1.14 Neme and Thnﬁ&ne'm";igmwry

s Director

r’o "y }4/3;31 Aeronautics, Rail and Transit

roval by ;th H. Dcpartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: CC'“"“‘J 0. Moes On: 6/3/ 202\

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Exceutive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Mecting Date:

i Page 1 of §
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), cngages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform. the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attachcd EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemem (o the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Fxecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the partics
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor and
Exccutive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agrecment shall  become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Datc™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Secrvices prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become cffective, the State shall have no lisbility to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation 1o pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Scrvices performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF-AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision jof this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of thc State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continucd appropriation of
funds affccted by any state or federal legislative or exccutive
action that reduces, eliminatcs or othcrwisc modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agrecment and
the Scope for Services provide in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the Statc be lisble for any payments
hercunder in excess of such aveilable appropriated funds. In
the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such
funds become available, if ever, and shall have the right to
reduce or terminate the Services under this Agrecment
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are
reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract pricc, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more porticularly described in
EXHIBIT C which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever naturc incurred by the Contractor in the
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performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Statc shall
have no lizbility to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agrcement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA B0:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agrcement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the toal of sll payments authorized, or actuaily
made hereunder, cxceed the Price Limitation sct forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conncction with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutcs, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and cqual
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agrecment is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the
Contractor shall comply with ell federal executive orders, rules,
regulations and statutes, and with any rules, rcgulations and
guidclincs as the State or the Unitcd Statcs issue to implement
these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with all
applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 During the tcrm of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate ogninst employees or epplicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap,
sexual orieatstion, or national origin and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access (o any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts
for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules,
regulations and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessery to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnc! engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed
and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this Agrccment.
This provision shall survive termination of this Agrecment.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Statc's representative. In the event of
any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials ‘JJ
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any onc, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedicd within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely curcd, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2)
days aficr giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice spccifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would othcrwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the datc of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and sct off against any other obligations the State
may owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by
reason of any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default, treat the Agreement es breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights
with regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event
of Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce
cach and all of the provisions hercof upon any further or other
Event of Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, thc State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agrcement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Coniractor shall, at the Stete's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days after the
date of termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing
in detail all Services performed, and the contract price camed,
to and including the date of termination. The form, subject
* matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report described
in the attached EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Statc's
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discretion, the Contractor shall, within 1S days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition
Plan for services under the Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used im this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things devcloped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictonial reproductions, drawings, analyscs, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished. :

9.2 All data and any property which has been reccived from the
State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the Statc, and shall be
returned to the State upon demand or upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior writtcn approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is ncither an agent nor
an employec of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shail have authority to
bind the Statc or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its cmployees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall pot assign, or othcrwisc transfer any
interest in this Agreement without thc prior written notice,
which shall be provided to the Statc at least fiftcen (15) days
prior to the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For
purposcs of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions
in which a third party, together with its affiliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity intercsts, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by eny
provisions contained in & subcontract or an assignment
agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by
law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the
State, its officers and cmployecs, from and against any and all
claims, liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property
damages, patent or copyright infringement, or other claims
asserted agoinst the State, its officers or employees, which arisc
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out of (or which muy be claimed to arise out of) the acls or
omission of the Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not
limitcd to the ncgligence, reckless or intcntional conduct. The
State shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor
arising under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the Statc, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its solc cxpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall rcquire any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force; the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damagc, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per-occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or cxcess; and

14.1:2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement valuc of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorscments approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance,
and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance requircd under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance
and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or
excmpt from, the requircments of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers ' Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent thc Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which thc person proposes to undertake pursuant to
this Agreement. The Contractor shall fumnish the Contracting
Officer identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of
Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thercof, which
shall be attached and are incorporated hercin by reference. The
State shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or bencfit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any nolice by a party hereto 1o the other pany
shall bc decemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by centified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the partics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may bc amcended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the partics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the¢ Govemor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshirc unlcss no
such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrcement shall
be governcd, interpreted and construcd in sccordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the partics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording uscd in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the partics to cxpress their mutual intent,
and no rulc of construction shall be applied against or in favor
of any party. Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be
brought and maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court
which shall have exclusive junisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as medified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thercof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrcement are
for reference purposcs only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement. :

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc
incorporated herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remoining provisions
of this Agreement will remain in full force and cffect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the cnrire agreement und
understanding betwcen the parties, and superscdes ell prior
agrecments and understandings with respect to the subject

which might arisc undcr applicable State of New Hampshire matter hereof.
Workers’ Compensation laws in  connection  with  the
performance of the Services under this Agreement. '
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions
EXHIBIT B Scope of Services
EXHIBIT C Budget
EXHIBIT D Vehicle List
Certificate of Good Standing
‘Certificate of Corporate Vote
Certificate of Insurance
FTA Certifications and Assurances
FTA Master Agreement
DOL Special Warranty — Unified Protective Arrangement
2 CFR Part 200
FTA Section 5310
FTA Section 5311
Social Service Documents to Include:
501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes




Al

2.1

A2

5.5

5.6

57

5.8

5.9

5.10

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Amend P-37 Section 2. “EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO BE
PERFORMED" by adding the following:

The Contractor may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State
and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

Amend P-37 Section 5. “CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT" by
adding the following:

As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the
Contractor shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80%
of allowable administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital costs
are identified in Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and document the availability
of local funds sufficient to meet the project cost in excess of the Contract Price
Limitation. :

In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of
total allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the
Completion Date and made available to the State upon demand.

The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the
State on a monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request.
Such requests for payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for
payments must be for allowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for
advance payment will be accepted by the State.

Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine
the allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand
production of (and the Contractor shall produce) and inspect any documents and records
described in Section 5. '

Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount
due and owing to the Contractor and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions
of this Agreement. Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract
amount in any given quarter.

Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by
this Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.c., payment for the last month
or partion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of
the State and Federal Transit Administration-(FTA). The final payment may be retained
and withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.
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9.4

9.5

9.6

9:7

9.8

Amend P-37 Section 6. “"COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY™ by adding the following:

The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants
for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race,
color, age, creed, sex or national origin.

The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and
any subcontracts under this agreement.

Amend P-37 Section 9. “DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/PRESERVATION” by
adding the following: :

The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of

this agreement:

a) Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such
data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor authorize
others to do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA
may have either released or approved the release of such data to the public.

b) As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA rescrves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others
to use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grani, cooperative
agreement, sub-grant, or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has
been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third
party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

Ttis FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above,
FTA may make available to any recipicnt, subgrantee, contractor or subcontractor its
license in the copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data
first produced under this Agreement.

The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation
of the proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreement.

Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any
patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise
granted to the United States under any patent. '

Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material fumished to the Contractor
by the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement,
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of
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delivery of such work.

9.9 . Intheevent that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

A.5.  Amend P-37 Section 10. “TERMINATION” by adding the following:

10.1 The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) prior to final payment.

10.2 Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this
Agreement, the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve
the Contractor from any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State
as a result of the Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder, including refund of any
federal funds required by FTA.

10.3 Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Scrvices and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the
parties hereto.

10.4 Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the
Contractor hereunder, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon
thirty (30) days written notice. i

A.6. Amend P-37 Secction 12. “ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS” by
adding the following: -

12.1 The Contractor shall cause the provisions of this contract to be inserted in all subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agrecment so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Contractor shall
take such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Contractor shall
ensure that any subcontractor has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals required for
the performance of contract services.

A.7.  Amend P-37 Section 14. “INSURANCE" by adding the following:

14.1.1.a. The State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Transportation has accepted the General
Liability insurance of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 General Aggregate for Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. in fulfillment of the requirements of Section
14.1.1 General Liability Insurance of the P-37 form.

A.8. Amend P-37 by adding “DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS



ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services
described in Exhibit A and which satisfy the-requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to
the State detailing the scopc of the public transportation program of the Contract as
modified and approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,
purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
transportation service.

SECTION 5311: Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Dr,partmcrﬁ of Transportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit. '

A.9. Amend P-37 by adding “ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26: -

.I. Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the
Contractor. The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will
indicate the funds remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of
each month. Entries shall be made on a running basis and carried over to the following
month; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively. Contractor shall also prepare
and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such information is not
provided with invoices.

2. Accounts Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and
maintain receipt vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall credit all revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall establish and maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt
number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt
voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify cach
component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for cach deposit should
be attached to the receipt voucher.

3. Payables. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures
of funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a
form approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will
be drawn, the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any
appropriate comments supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll
vouchers). All invoices.received by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and
allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the Contract Manager or
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designee. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or subcontractor shall make entries
to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subcontractor shall identify
a Contract Manager).

4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
two registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
self-designated abbreviations are to be used.

5. Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register
is also considered a book of original entry, and is posted to the ledger immediately.

6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to: 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent
on such work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the
cognizant Federal agency. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply
employee's rates of pay to the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed
and signed time reports, and cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Contractor shall maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and
shall post this information to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Contract
Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Contractor shall submit a description of Contract
activities, in a format as required by the State. Should the Contractor show a profit for any
month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement
requests. The Contractor shall agree to provide information in addition to the monthly
narrative at such times and in such manner as the State may require, and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or
termination report if operations cease.

8. Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution
shall rest with the State.

9. Audits and Inspections. Bctween the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period
of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters
relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor’s normal
business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Contractor shall make
available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered
by this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and
reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls,
records of personnel, Data (as defined in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relating
to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Contractor” includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of P-37.
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A.10.

27.

A.1l.

Independent Audit. The Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the
project upon demand. Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the
Contract Budget for that specific purpose.

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies are duc and owing to the State from the

Contractor, for whatever reasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums
within thirty (30) days of the audit date.

The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity
reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information
or reports requircd by the State to complete the FTA’s National Transit Database (NTD)
reporting.

Amend P-37 by adding “PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY” as Section
27:

PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with
funds provided through this or other Agreements between the State and the Contractor:

a. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular
4220.1F and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts
661 and 663.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State, unless the Contractor has received prior
approval from the State to procure vehicles.

c. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be
purchased by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State.

d. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided,
however, that in order to secure the complete performance of this Agrcement, the
Contractor shall give the State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of
purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other acts necessary or
useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the

‘. purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall give
the State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take
all steps necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to
identify the State as a lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

e. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property
becomes the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to
such equipment shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment
will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040.1G, and the State
Management Plan.

Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:
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A.12.
29.
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30.

A.l14.

31.

A.lS.
32.

EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Contractor shall maintain a current inventory
listing of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Contract shall
submit to the State a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall
be supplicd to the State by each year, gencrally by June 30™.

Amend P-37 by adding “EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the service described in Exhibit D. Contractor
shall maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and
mechanical soundness. The contractor shall certify that a proper maintenance plan
that meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer's preventive
maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved
by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical improvement
activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contractor and at a location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in
this location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any
physical improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA
and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the
purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

Amend P-37 by adding “REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS” as section 30:

REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shall maintain a complete and
up to date record of all motor vehicle repairs, and shall make such records available to
the State and FTA upon demand.

Amend P-37 by adding “VEHICLE STORAGE? as section 31:

VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part
under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Contractor shall park or
garage cach vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each
vehicle. The Contractor shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of
weather or any other circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location
of the garaging site and any relocation.

Amend P-37 by adding “TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW” as section 32:

TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training
courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period
and may require participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers
and other employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include
defensive driving, passenger assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher
training every three (3) years. The Contractor agrees that the State shall have the right to
review the performance of all drivers who are employed in connection with this
Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose performance as a driver is
determined to be unsatisfactory by the State. '
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- 35.

A.19.
36.
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37.

Amend P-37 by adding “SAFETY REQUIREMENTS” as section 33:

SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. All project equipment shall be inspected and certified
by the Department of Safety, and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under
RSA 266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt written notification of any
accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Contractor shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contractor shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering
the previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of its
alcohol misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall
be in compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

The Contractor shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

Amend P-37 by adding “SERVICE LIMITATIONS” as section 34:

SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Contractor shall not engage in the provision of
transportation services other than those described in Exhibit A, or outside the service area
described in Exhibit A, without the written consent of the State and without obtaining the
appropriate operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus
operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

Amend P-37 by adding “CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS” as section 35:

CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the
Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are
required by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may
be necessary for the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and
shall be properly licensed and authorized to perform such Services under all applicable
laws.

Amend P-37 by adding “LABOR PROVISIONS” as section 36:

LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of
the Unified Protective Arrangement, Section 533(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended,
incorporated herein for the protection of the employees of any employer providing
transportation services assisted by this Agreement, and the employces of any other
surface transportation providers in the transportation service area identified in Exhibit A.

Amerid P-37 by adding “PATENT RIGHTS” as section 37:

PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this Contract,




which invention, improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the
United States or any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State
and provide a detailed report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the
State with respect to such invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in
accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof.

A.21. Amend P-37 by adding “BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION?” as section 38:

38.

BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Contractor warrants that it has -not
employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working
solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely
for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agrecment.
For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this
Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

. The Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program (hereinafter the “Contractor”),
shall provide the following ADA-accessible public transit services:

a.

Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in Coos
and Grafton Counties as detailed in the “Project Description” of the Contractor’s
application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and
Transit (hereinafter “NHDOT") for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5311 funding. The Contractor’s application is hereby incorporated by reference and
made part of this agreement.

Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in
Carroll County as detailed in the “Project Description” of the Contractor’s FTA
Section 5311 application to the NHDOT. The Contractor’s application is hereby
incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement.

Serve as the lead agency for Region 1 Grafton — Coos Regional Coordinating Council
(RCC) for FTA Section 5310 RCC funds to provide accessible transportation services
to seniors and individuals with disabilities in cooperation with the Region 1 Grafton —
Coos RCC. The Contractor’s 5310 RCC grant application is hereby incorporated by
reference and made part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to provide all
services indicated in the grant application unless modified per this agreement.

. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 5311-funded public
transit services provided by Contractor pursuant to this agreement:

a. The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation or the Commissioner’s

designee (hereinafter the “Commissioner'’) may require the Contractor to provide
additional transportation services or to reduce transportation services provided under
this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in
writing by the Commissioner: to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the
alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.

The Contractor may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Contractor’s grant application to the NHDOT, to add, reduce, or adjust'transportation
services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services,
including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall be requested
in writing by the Contractor to the Commissioner for approval at lcast 30 days in
advance. Revisions subject to a public comment period shall be requested at least 60
days in advance. Upon approval of the Commissioner, the Contractor shall implement
any alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the
Commissioner and the Contractor.




c. The Contractor shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the
Commissioner, except in an cmergency situation. In such an emergency, the
Contractor shall notify the Commissioner no later than the next working day
following the day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a
maximum of five days; thereafter, the written approval of the Commissioner shall be
required to continue such emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally-funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as
any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with all
applicable Federal and State laws as well as NHDOT requirements.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 5310-funded services
for seniors and individuals with disabilitics provided by Contractor pursuant to this
agreement:

a. Mobility management activities, and as applicable, transportation services,
subcontractors, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of those submitted
in the Contractor’s 5310 Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modified by NHDOT through written notification to the Contractor.
Further amendments to mobility management activities, transportation services,
subcontractors, and/or maximum reimbursement rates require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval from the Commissioner.

b. Eligible Regional Mobility Manager expenses shall be limited to those directly
related to the position’s role as described within the 2016 New Hampshire Statewide
Coordination of Community Transportation Services Plan, hereby incorporated by
reference. Roles may be further modified based on those recommended by the
Statewide Coordinating Council (SCC) and approved in writing by the
Commissioner.

c. All services provided shall conform to FTA Section 5310 guidelines. Per FTA
requirements, the Contractor shall be responsible for oversight of subrecipients and
contractors relative to FTA requirements.

d. The Contractor shall ensure the provision of ADA accessible services within the RCC
region. Any marketing materials, brochures, and other service information shall
describe it as ADA-accessible. It is acceptable for a subcontractor/lower-tier
subrecipient that does not utilize accessible vehicles to contract with an accessible

provider in order to meet this requirement.



e. The Contractor must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of
services throughout the contract period regardless of mobility management expenses
exceeding the maximum allowed to be reimbursed.

f. The Commissioner may require the Contractor to provide additional transportation
services or to reduce transportation services provided under this contract. Any
alterations to such transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the
Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall implement the alterations
within thirty (30) days unless another timeframe is agreed to by the Commissioner
and the Contractor.

g Services shall last the entire contract period. As necessary, the Contractor shall
establish trip priorities to ensure funds are not expended prematurcly.

4. The following terms and conditions apply to State Operating funds:

a. State operating matching funds shall be used to provide a portion of the non-Federal
Funds required to match Federal Transit Administration (FTA) operating funds for
public transportation services provided by the Contractor and as further detailed on
the Contractor's website.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY. ACTION PROGRAM

EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

The Contract price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, are FTA Section
5311 and Section 5310 portions of the cligible project costs as well as State Operating
funds. Federal (FTA) and State funds are granted as follows:

FTA Section 5311 SFY 2022 SFY 2023
Coos & Grafton Counties
Administration $69,100.00 $66,500.00
Capital Preventive Maintenance $29,100.00 $28,000.00
Capital ADA $0.00 $0.00
Operating $166,000.00 $132,200.00
Sub Total Coos & Grafton Counties $264,200.00 $226,700.00
Carroll County SFY 2022 SFY 2023
Administration $61,000.00 . $59,000.00
Capital Preventive Maintenance $22,400.00 $21,700.00
Capital ADA $0.00 $0.00
Operating $53,200.00 $42,500.00
Sub Total Carroll County $136,600.00 $123,200.00
Total FTA 5311 Funding $400,800.00 $349.900.00
State Operating Match
Coos & Grafton Counties $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Carroll County $8,696.00 $8,696.00
Total State Operating Match $17,392.00 $17,392.00
FTA Section 5310 RCC SFY 2022 SFY 2023
Contracted Services $115,089.00 $115,089.00
Mobility Management Activities $72,411.00 $72,411.00
Regional Mobility Manager $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Total FTA 5310 RCC Funding $237,500.00 $237,500.00
| Total Federal (FTA) Funds $638,300.00 $587,400.00
Total State Funds ' $17,392.00 $17,392.00
Total Contract Funds $655,692.00 $604,792.00
Total Two-Year Contract Funds $1,260,484.00

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor’s first request for
reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the Commissioner a budget incorporating all
funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract. Budget revisions
may be made with written approval of the Commissioner. Unless otherwise advised by
NHDOT, budget revisions may only rcquest the transfer of funds within a category or
between categories with the same matching ratio.
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The Contractor may scck reimbursement for these funds by submitting a monthly or
quarterly invoice for the total eligible expenses, less agency match as applicable, to
NHDOT. The invoice must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and
statemnents from service providers, as applicable, to support the request for matching funds.

Reimbursement of state operating funds shall be requested via monthly invoices until
operating funds are fully expended.

The Contractor’s submitted invoices shall indicate the month(s) for which the state
operating matching funds are being applied, the amount of FTA funds the state operating
matching funds are leveraging, and the FTA grant program from which the Contractor will
draw down the FTA funds.

Mobiiity management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to
support the request.

The Contractor will verify that trip reimbursement is for non-Medicaid-eligible trips only.

For expenses other than contracted services, the Contractor may seck reimbursement only
for eligible expenses listed in the budget and detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with.
the exception of funds specifically reserved, if any, and identified in “Specifically
Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.

At the sole discretion of the Commissioner, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Contract Price to a subsequent
contract, if any, between the State and the Contractor.




TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

EXHIBIT D :
VEHICLE LIST
Total Vehicles: 15
2020 Ford Transit IFDAX2C85LKA63998
2020 Ford Transit 1IFDAX2C83LKA63997
2019 Ford Cutaway 1FDFEAFS 1KDC73998
2010 Eldorado Aerolite 88&2 gas bus IFDEE3FL9ADB01487

2010 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 gas bus

IFDEE3FL1ADBO01483

2010 Eldorado Acrolite 842 gas bus

1FDEE3FL2ADB01489

2010 Eldorado Acrolite 8&2 gas bus IFDEE3FLOADB01488
2011 Eldorado Aerolite 8&2 bus 1FDEE3FLOBDA73420
2011 Eldorado Acrolitc 8&2 Gas Bus \FDEE3FL9BDA73421
2011 Stastrans Senator 11 bus 16&2 1FDFE4FS6ADB01898
2013 Ford Phoenix 8 & 2 gasoline |FDEE3FL7DDA41956
2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger Bus IFDEE3FS7GDC57852
2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger Bus 1FDEE3FS9GDCS7853
2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger Bus 1FDEE3FS5GDC57851
2017 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger |FDEE3FS8HDC29270




State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is 8 New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporetion registered to transact busincss in
New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concemed.

Business ID: 63020
Certificate Number: 0005362631

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be offixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5th day of Moy A.D. 2021.

Dok

Willizm M. Gerdner
Secreary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
{Name of he elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Chair/Vice Chair/ Secretary of _Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc. :
: (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ___September 26th___, 2020__, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That ___Jeanne Robilllard, CEQ; Randall Pilotte, CFO (may list more than ane person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc._ to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State
(Name of Corpaoration/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is. authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which

may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

pated: )< [0- 2027 | ,A’.AA.'._‘_
, Signature of Elec i
Name: Sandy AloHzo
Title: Board Chair .

Rev. 03/24/20




e " o . DATE (MMDOYYYY,
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE £ Aeniliy

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

—FAPORTANT: 1f ihe cortificats holder s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba endorsad.
H SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltions of the policy, certain policiss may require an sndorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lisu of such endorsement(s).

FIAUCross insurance PRONT  (803) 069-1218 [T e (803) 6454331
1100 Elm Street i@ﬁu aniciding crossagency.com
INSURER(E) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAK 8
Manchester NH 03101 wsuner a: Phiiadsiphia indemnity Ins Co . 18058
NSURED INSURER B : Granite State Hasith Cars and Human Services Self-
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc —
30 Exchange Steet INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Berin NH 03570 —
COVERAGES . CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  20-21 Ali21-22 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

[TFOUY BXP

LR TYPE OF MIURANCE | YYD POLICY NUMBER | (NWOOD/YYYY) |k
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
"DARIAGE TO RERTED
_} CLABIS-MADE IZ oceum | PREMISES (Es posygrinon | 38 190000
[ | - MED EXP {Any one persen) | 3 5000

Al ] PHPK2150055 0710172020 | 070172021 | pemsomataaovwuay | s 1000000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLEES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE 4 3.000,000
a poucy 588 [iee pROOUCTS - CoupoPAGs | 3 3:000,000

OTHER: L
AUTOMORILE LIABRITY COMBINED BWGLELWIT |4 1,000,000
5 ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per porsan) | §

OWNED SCHEDULED

A || RTos oy oriy PHPK2150050 070172020 | 07/01/2021 | BODILY IUURY (Pw scddent) | $

HIRED NOM-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| auToS osY AUTOS ONLY | (Pec podidery)

Underinsured motorist s 1,000,000
B Dot occwwtice | s 2000.000

A |5 axcessLus CLAMS MADE PHUB728178 070172020 | O7/01/2021 | \acmecate s 2,000,000

oeo_| 2<] retewmon s 10.000 s
WORNERS COMPENSATION C
AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY YIN X gt | & 1000000

ORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE 000,

B | v est [N]{wea HCHS20210000426 (3a.) NH 020172021 | 02/0172022 |4 EACHACCIOENT E
rmhm L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § 1,000,000
DESCRPTION OF GPERATIONS beiow £L Oease -pouicy L | 3 1:000,000

’ ch Occumence 1.000,
Professiona! Liabilty ) Ea 000
A PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 | 07/01/2021 |Aggregale 3.000,000
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS | LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 181, Additionsl Remarks Schedule, muy be attached if rmers space s requined)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION . :

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN

New Hampshire Department of Transportation Rall and Transit ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

PO Box 483
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

7 Hazen Drive
Concord NH 03302-0483 M

1

J

© 1088-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Certifications and Assurances

Fiscal Year 2021

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2021 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FT

. Name of Applicant: .ﬁ-.(M\u fmwuﬁq_m'ﬁu@m, Inc.

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of categories 01-21. _ _

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions ofthe categories it has selected:

Category

01

10

11

Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicfmt
Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

Lobbying

Private Sector Protections

Transit Asset Management Plan

Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing
Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited

Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grents Pilot Program

Grants for Buses and.Bus Facilitics and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs

Certification

e R R




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

2 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

I3 State of Good Repair Grants
‘14  Infrastructure Finance Programs

15  Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16  Rail Safety Training and Oversight
I7  Demand Responsive Service :
I8  Interest and Financing Costs E iz
19  Construction Hiring Preferences
20  Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and

Operations
21 Tribal Transit Programs

(Required of all Applicents for federn] essistance 1 be swarded by FTA in FY 2021)

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name ofthe Applicent: _'_l";-cgggd‘ fbmmyk‘_q‘,ﬁ\m_?(pomm' e : -

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalfofthe Applicant, 1 declare that it has duly suthorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurences end bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal law, regulations,

indicated on the {tregoing page spplicable to cach application its Authorized Representztive makes © the Fedenal
Trensit Adruinistration (FTA) in federal fiscal year 2021, imespective of whether the individual that acted on his or
her Applicant’s behalf continucs o represent it

FTA imtends that the Cextifications and Assurances the Applicant selects on the other side ofthis document
anmgmramnmmummmwmbumm
federal fiscal year 2021. '

ThAwﬁwtmmcuuhﬂﬂmmﬂmmyofnCuﬁﬂuﬁmmmmhhuwbmdhm
statemants submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that te
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 US.C. § 3801 efseq., and implementing US. DOT regulations,
*Progrem Fraud Civil Remedies,” 49 CFR part 31, apply © eny centification, assurance or submission made to




Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021
FTA. The arimimal provisions of B US.C. § 10! qﬂybqwﬁ&:ﬁmmunhﬁﬁmmﬁ:h
MMIMWWmmwQU&CMS ar zny other statrde

mmmmlmmmmofmmummmmm
any other made by me on behalfof the Applicant e truo end accursie.

g _Q DL U"{ | ve _0/ 04 203

M_Mb\\h(a Austhorized Represeotative of Applicant 657




FFY 2021 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to reccive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agrecment must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2021 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency’s agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agroement remains in force for the term of the

agreement.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 02/04/21
Name of Agency Date
Jeanne L. Robillard

Neme of Authorized Official Signature |
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Qffice of Labor-Management Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility
Projects
PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF
TITLE 49 OF THE U.S. CODE, CHAPTER 53
Jonuary 3, 2011

The following fanguage shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference in the Federal Transit Administration's Master
Agreement as signed by the grantee:

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the transportation-related employees in the
transportation service area of the Project. As a precondition of the retease of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any
Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by incorporating this arrangement into the
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Recipient(s), by reference. If a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the
warranty and falls to bind a Recipient as a precondition to the release of funds, the Grantee wiil be a guarantor of the required
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if it were the Reciplent of funds unless and until the Grantee is able to secure
the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the terms of the Warranty.

These protective arrangements arg intended for the benefit of transit employees in the service area of the project, who are
considered as third-party beneficisries to the employee protective arangements incorporated by referenced in the grant contract
between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signfy by executing that
contract. Transit employees are aiso third party beneficiarles to the protective arrangements incorporated in subsequent contracts
of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient. Employees, or their representative, may assert claims with respect to the
protective arrangements under this provision. This clause creates no Independent cause of action against the United States
Government.

Tha tarm "service area.” as used herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose
population is served by the Project, Including adjacent areas affected by the Project. The term “Union,” as used herein, shall referto
any labor otpnlahon representing employees providing public transportation services In the service area of a Project assisted
under the grant. The term “employee,” as used herein, shall include individuals who may or may not be represented by a Union.

The term "Recipient,” as used herein, shall refer to 2ny employer{s) receiving transportation assistance under the grant: The term
“Grantee,” as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance; a Grantee which receives assistance is also a Redplent.

Where the Department of Labor (the Department) deems it necessary to modify the requirements of this Special Warranty
Arangement so that 2 particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the requirements of the statute, the Department will
Issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the alternative provisions to be included in the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. These terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with
these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by the Department.

(1) The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of
tha Recipient and of any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Rroject. It shall be an
obligation of the Recipient to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated
In such a manner that they do not impalr the rights and interests of affected employees. The term “Project,” as used herein, shall
not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federa! funds, but shall include any changes, whether
organizational, operational, technological, or otherwise, which are 2 result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project,” shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related to the Project occurringin anticipation of, during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies refated thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and character of employment brought about solely by causes other than the Project
{including any economies or efliciencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangement.

An employee covered by this arangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened in his/her position with regard
1o employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for » dismissal or displacement
allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement. ‘




(2) Where employees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining purposes, all Project services provided by that
Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which
is then in effect. This Amangement does not create any collective bargaining relationship where cne does not already exist or
between any Reclpient and the employees of anather employer. Where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with
the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any action which impalrs or interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.
(3) All rights, priviteges, and benefits (including pension rights and benefits) of cmployees\covered by this arrangement (including
employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under any revision of renewal
thereol, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however, that such rights, privileges and benefits which are not foreclosed
from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient
and the Unlon invalved to substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement
_shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may atherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it
deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(#) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by this arrangement, including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintain union security and checkoff amangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, huwever. that this pravision shall not be Interpreted so as to require the
Reciplent to retain any such rights which exist by virtue of a collecdvebargatmng agreement after such agreement is no longer in

effect

The Reciplent agrees that it wil bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise amange for the continuation of collective
bargaining, and that tt will enter into agreements with the Unlon or arrange for such agreements to be entered into, relative to all
subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. If, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to
employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, nothing in this arrangement shall be deemed

to foreclose the exercise of such right.

(5)(2) The Recipient shall provide to all affected employees sixty {60) days® notice of intended actions which may result in
displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forceses 8 result of the Project. In the case of employees
represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mail through their representatives. The notice shall contain a full
and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of the number of employees aflected by the intended changes,
and the number and classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient, including those inthe
employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21), available to be filled by such affected employees.

(5)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices involve employees represented by a Union for
collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotlations for the
purposes of reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement shall commence
immediately. These negotiations shall include determining the sefection of forces from among the mass transportation employees
who may be affected as a resuit of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they are
qualified or can be trained. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any party
to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settiement procedures in accordance with paragraph (15) of this arrangement.
Unfess the parties otherwise mutually agree In writing, no change in operations, services, facilities or equipment within the
purview of this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either: 1) an agreement with respect to the application of the terms and
canditions of this arrangement to the intended change{s) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant
to this subparagraph (b); or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15) of this arrangement determines that the Intended
change(s) may be instituted prior to the finalization of implementing arrangements.

{5Mc) in the event of a dispute a3 to whether an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (S) may be instituted at the
end of the 60-day notice period and before 2n implementing agreement is reached or a final arbitration decision is rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b), any involved party may immediately submit thatissue to arbitration under paragraph (15) of this
arrangement. In any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utilized by the Surface Transportation
Board (and its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the “preconsummation” issue In cases
involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.5.C. Section 11326 {or Its predecessor, Section 5{2)(f) of the Interstate Commerce
Act, as amended). If the Reclpient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in any such arbltration, that the Intended action is 2
trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other similar transaction,
the burden shall then shift to the involved labor organization(s) to prove that under the standards and cnteria referenced above,
the intended action should not be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of o negotiated or arbitrated implementing
agreement. If the Recipient fails to demonstrate that the intended action isa trackage rights, ease proceeding, or similar
transaction, it shall be the burden of the Recipient to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above, the intended
action should be permitted to be Instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement, For
purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



submitted by the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five (5) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by
facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to
by the parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with five {5) additional days for mailing if
posthearing briefs are requested by either party. The intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c). -

{5)(d) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5} Is instituted before an implementing agreement is reached or a
final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all emplayees affected shall be kept financially whole, as If the
noticed and implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an implementing
agreement ar final arbitration decision. This protection shall be in addition to the protective period defined In paragraph (14} of this
arrangement, which periad shall begin on the effective date of the implementing agreement or final arbitration decislon rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of a noticed and implemented action prior to
the consummation of an implementing agreement o final arbitration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this
arrangement as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration
decision pursuant to subparagraph {b).

{6)(a)} Whenever an employes, retained in service, recalled to service, or employed by the Reciplent pursuant to paragraphs (S), (7)
(e), or (18) hereof is placed in a worsa position with respect to compensation as a result of the Project, the employee shall be
considered a "displaced employee”, and shall be pald a monthly "displacement allowance® to be determined In accordance with
this paragraph, Sakd displacement allowance shall be pald each displaced employee during the protective period so long as the
employee Is unable, In the exercise of his/her senlority rights, to obtain a position producing compensation equai to or exceeding
the compensation the employee received in the position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

{6)(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly altowance determined by computing the total compensation received by the
employee, including vacation atlowances and monthly compensation guarantees, and his/her total time paid for during the last
twetve {12) months in which the employee performed compensated service more than fifty per centum of each such months, based
upon the employee’s normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and
by dividing separately the total compensation and the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly
compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage
adjustments, Including cost of living adjustments where provided for. If the displaced employee's compensation in hisfher current
position Is less in any month during his/her protective period than the aforesaid average compensation (adjusted to reflect .
subsequent ganeral wage adjustments, including cost of Iiving adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the
difference, less compensation for any time lost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee is not available
for service equivalent to his/her average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated [n addition thereto at the rate of
the current pasition for any ime worked in excess of the average monthly time paid for. If a displaced employee fails to exercise
his/her senfority rights to secure another position to which the employeeis entitled under the then existing collective bargaining
agreement, and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the emplayee efects to retain,
the employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elects to

decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the explration of the protective period in the event of the displaced
employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her

employment.

(7)(a) Whenever any employee Is tald off or otherwise deprived of employment a5 a result of the Project, in accordance with any
collective bargzining agreement appficable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee” and
shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to be determined in accordance with this paragraph. Said dismissal allowance shall
first be paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day following the day on which the employee is “dismissed” and shall

continue during the protective period, as follow:

Employee’s length of service

nrior to adverse effect Period of pratection
1 doy to 6 years equivalent period

6 years or more 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (1/12th) of the total compensation received by the employee in
the last twelve (12) months of his/her employment in which the employee performed compensation service more than (ifty per
centum of each such month based on the employee’s normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first deprived




of employment a5 a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(7)(b) An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds Is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds is not abalished but the employee
loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position Is abolished as a result of the Project
or as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the employee s
unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee’s seniority rights, or through the Reciplent, in accordance
with subparagraph (d. In the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof, no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exercise his/her seniority rights to
secure another position in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7){c) Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shail keep the Reciplent informed as to his/her current address and the
current name and address of any other person by whom the employee may be regularty employed, or If the employee is seif-
employed.

(7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned Incumbent of the position abolished. If the position ofan
employea Is abolished when the employee is absent from service, the employse will be entitled to the dismissal allowance when
the employee is available for service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time it was abolished will be given 2
dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular employee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to
the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said position, If any are due him/her.

(7){e) An employee recelving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to retum to service by the employee’s former employer;
notification shall be in accardance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement If the employee is
represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to work by his/her employer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to
accept reasonably comparable employment for which the employee Is physically and mentally qualified, or for which the employee
can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period, provided it does not require a change in residence or Infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing coltective bargaining agreements.

[T)(f) When an employee who Is recefving a dismissal allowance again commences employment in accordance with subparagraph

{¢) above, said allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, and the period of time during which the employee Is so
reemployed shall be deducted from the total period for which the employee is entitied to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of such reemployment, the employee shall be entitied to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

(7)(g) The dismissal allowance of any employee who is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee’s
camblned monthly eamings from such other employment or sell-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment
insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount upon which the employee's dismissal allowance Is based. Such
employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shall agree upon a procedure by which the Reclplent shall be kept
currently Informed of the eamings of such employee in employment other than with the employee's former employer, including
self-employment, and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the failure of the employee
without good cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided
under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in
accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employment. .

{7)(7) A dismissed employee recetving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her for which the employee Is physicatly and mentally qualified and does not require a change in the
employee's place of residence. Fallure of the dismissed employee to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee’s allowance; provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinued until final
determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final
arbitration decision rendered in accordance with paragraph {15) of this amangement that such employee did not comply with this
cbligation. '

(8) In determining length of servica of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be
given full service creditsin accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given additional service credits for each month in which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the
employee were continulng to perform services in his/her former position.

{9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragrophs (6) or (7) hereof because of the
abolishment of a pasition to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.




(10) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be deprived, during the employee’s protected period, of
any rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employment, including, without limitation, group lifeinsurance,
hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under any disability or retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Social Security,
workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
undar the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be,

(11)(a) Any employee covered by this arrangement who is retained in the service of his/her employer, of who is (ater restored to
service after being entitled to receive » dismissal allowance, and who is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipient in accordance with this arrangement, and who is required to move
his/her place of residence, shall be refmbursed for all expenses of moving his/her househald 2nd other personal effects, for the
travaling expenses for the employee and members of the employee'simmediate family, including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for a
reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed five (5) working days. The exact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Recipient and the affected
employee or the employee’s representatives.

{11)(b) If eny such employee is laid off within three (3) years after changing his/her point of employment in accardance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of residence back to the original point of employment, the Redpient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11) and

paragraph (12)(a) hereof.

{11)(c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
Recipient in writing withn ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (b}, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as a
result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of senlority rights, shall not be

consldered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(a) The following conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in each instance to any employee who s retained in
the service of the employer (or who s Later restored 10 service sfter being entitied to receive a dismissal allowance), who s required
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and Is thereby required to move his/her place of residence.

if the employee is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against (oss under such
contract, end in addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

if the employee holds an unexpired lease of a dwelling occupied as the employee’s home, the Recipient shall protect the employee
from all loss and cost in securing the cancellation of sald lease.

{12)(b) No claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the Recipient in
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence.

(12)(c) Should a controversy arise in respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained in its sale, the loss under a contract for
purchase, loss and cost in securing termination of a lease, or any other question in connection with these matiers, it shall be
decided through a joint conference between the employee, or his/her union, and the Recipient. In the event they are unable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by the Reciplent or the union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
selected in the following manner: one (1) to be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Recipient, and
these two, if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereatter
to select a third appraiser or to agree to » method by which a third appraiser shall be selected, and faling such agreement, either
party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) daysa third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the Issues ralsed in
this paragraph onty. A dedision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne
equally by the parties to the proceedings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(12)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (11{b) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as
a result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of senlority rights, shall not be




considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(e) "Change in residence” means transfer to a work location which is either (A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the
employee's former work location 2nd farther from the employee's residence than was his/her former work location, or (B) is more
than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee’s residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the
employee's former work location. '

{13){a) A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may, at the employee's option within twenty-one {21)
days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided In this arrangement) accept a lump sum
payment computed in accordance with section (9) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

Length of Service Separation Allawance

1 year and less than 2 years 3 months’ pay
2%="*3%g""
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n the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 the normal dally earnings
(including reguiarly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee In the position last
occupied, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Sectlon 7(b) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement, a3 follows:

For the purposes of this arrangamant, the length of service of the employee shall be determined from the date the employee last
acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month In which the employee performed any service (in any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough in instances where the employee
has a right to and does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an employee acting as an officer or other
official represantative of an employee organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrer.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by multiplying by 30 the normal daity eamings (including regutarty scheduted overtime,
but axcluding other overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last occupied prior to time of the employee's
dismissal as a result of the Project.

(14) Whenever used herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "protective period” means that period of time during
which a displaced or dismissed employee is to be provided protection hereunder and extends from the date on which an employee
is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of six (6} years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any
particular employee during which the employee is entitled to receive the benefits of these provisions chall not continue for a longer
period following the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee’s displacement or dismissal.

{15)(a) In the event that employee{s) are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance prising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c), the
Labor-Management Relations Act, as amended, the Railway Labor Act, as amended, or by impasse resolution provisionsin a
coltective bargalning or protective srrangement invotving the Recipient and the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties
thereto within thirty {30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and binding
disputes settlement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim,
or grievance may be submitted at the wrilten request of the Recipient or the Unlon to final and binding arbitration. Should the
parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may request the American
Arbltration Association to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then avallable to serve, five (S} arbitrators from which a neutral
arbitrator shall be selected, The parties shall, within five (S} days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of
elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name untll only one name remains. The remaining
person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided, in the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
{5) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (15) days after selection or appointment of the neutral
arbitrator, and the decision shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the
record closed. The decision shall be final and binding. All the conditlons of the arrangement shall continue to be effective during

the arbitration proceedings.




(15)(b) The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, anc any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equaliy by
the Union(s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

{15)(c) In the event that employee(s) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enfarcement of the provisions of this arangement which cannot be settled by the Recipient and the
employee(s) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute setttement procedure acceptable to the parties, or in the event the parties cannot agree upon sucha qrucedure,
the dispute or contraversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labar for a final and binding determination.

(15)(d} In the event of any dispute as to whether or not a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be the obligation
of the employee or the representative of the employee to Identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It shall then be the burden of the Recipient to prove that lactors other than the Project affected the employee. The claiming
employee shall prevail if it is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. {See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. B25-71).

(16) The Recipient will be financialty respor;slble for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary amangements
so that any employee covered by this arrangement may file a written claim of its violation, through the Union, or direcdy if the
employee is outside the bargaining unit, with the Recipient within sixty (60] days of the date the employee Is terminated or laid off
25 a result of the Project, or within eighteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employmentis
otherwise worsened as a result of the Project. In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an
extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits shall be payable for any period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are filed with the Recipient within said time
limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be relieved of all liabilities and obligations related to the claim.

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate payments, or will give notice to the claimant or his/her representative
of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons therefore. If the Recipient falls to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint Investigation of the claim by giving notice in
writing, Within ten (10) days from the receipt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the disposition of the claim and shall jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any
third party such additional factusl materials as may be relevant. In the event the Recipient rejects the claim, the claim may be
processed to arbitration as hereinabove provided by paragraph (15).

1
(17) Nothing in this arangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may
have under exdsting employment or collective bargaining agreements or atherwise; provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to Include the
conditions, responsibitities, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shal! not be deemed a walver of any
rights of any Unton or of any represented employee dertved from any other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the employee so requests, in writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to fill any vacant position within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, Including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for which the employee is, or by training or retraining can become, qualified; not,
however, in contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto. In the event such employee requests such training !
or retralning to fill such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the employee. The
employee shall be paid the satary or hourly rate provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or otherwise
established In personnel policies or practices for such position, plus any displacement atlowance to which the employee may be
otherwise entitied. If such dismissed employee who has made such request fails, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which
the employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employee shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,
forfeit all rights and benefits under this arrangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following arder where applicable shall prevail in
hiring such employees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class of the vacancy shall be glven priority over employees without seniority in such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having senlority in the craft or ctass of the vacancy, the senlor employees, based upon their service in
that craft or class, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shall prevail over junior employees;

{c) As between employees not having seniarity in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senlor employees, based upon their service in
the crafts or classes in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate senlority rosters, shall prevail over junior
employees.



{19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Reciplent has received federal assistance
under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.5.C., Section 5333(b). This notice shall also
specify the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shall maintain and keep on file all
relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the basic information necessary to the proper application,
administration, and enforcement of this amangement and to the proper determination of any clalms arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is approved for assistance under the statute, the foregoing terms and conditions shall be made part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicant for federal funds and between the applicant and any
reciplent of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her representative, in
accordance with its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge into this arangement, but each shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, in accordance with ts terms.

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and sssigns of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or
obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever by reason of the
arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision
andfor operation of the Project services or the Reciplent’s transit system, or any part or portion thereof, under contractual
arrangements of any form with the Reclplent, its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this amangement
and accept the responsibllity with the Recipient for full performance of these conditians. As a condition precedent to any such
contractual amangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to so agree.

(22} In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part of portion
thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions, within the jurisdiction and
control of the acquiring entity, including positions in the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
paragraph (21). All parsons employed under the provisions of this paragraph shall be appointed to such comparable positions
without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and
shall be credited with their years of servica for purposes of senlority, vacations, and pensions In accordance with the records of
their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Soclal Security, Railroad
Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like. in no event shall these benefits be worsened

a5 a result of the Project.

(24) In the event any provision of this arrangement is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the federal, state, or
local law, In thé context of a particular Project, the remaining provisions of this arrangemant shall not be affected and the invalid or
unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and the interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees
involved for purpose of sdequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such negotiation shall not result in mutually satisfactory
agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Labor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or refiel

(25) If any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted its forces in anticipation of
the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was so affected.

Last Updsted: 02-07-18
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MM of Tramipancilen

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient Agency: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $1,677,379.00
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.513
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 (COMBINED) RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 1385-2021-4
Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact information for sub-awarding official:
Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Patrick.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Subrecipient DUNS number: 73975708

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 38RUI & 6L.ZU4

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated benween the subrecipient and the Federal

Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated berween the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414

Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).

Subaward Period of performance:




FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Start Date: 7/1/21 End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award oblipated by this action contract/amendment)’
For FFY: 2021 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $475,000.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendmensy):
For FFY: 2021 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $475,000.00 :

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to meet all réquirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal

award.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial

statements as nccessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and
appropriate terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: Click or la@{n{@ p@() a\
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:




FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agrecment
Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Name of Recipient Agency: A;'ew Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Subrecipient Agency: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., shall comply with all applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (4s required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability end
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $8,643,178.00
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN):1385-2021-5
Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact information for sub-awarding official:
Name: Patrick C. Herlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

Email: Patrick. Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449
Is this awand for research and development? No
NHDOT’s cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information: ‘ _
Subrecipient Name: Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.,

Subrecipient DUNS number: 73975708

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 38RUI & 6LZU4
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Jeanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes

Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: 12%

(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414

Indirect. (F&A) costs, paragraph (f)).




FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:
Start Date: 7/1721 End Date: 6/30723

Total amount of FTA sub-award oblipated by this nt'tio'n fcontract/amendment):

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $750,700.00

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (original contract & amendments):

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $750,700.00

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to mect all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to any additional
requirements that the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (N HDOT) to meet its own
responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required
financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., agrees to permit the pass-
through entity (NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial

statcments as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this pan; and
appropriate terms and conditions conceming closcout of the subaward.

Date: Click 5%%@81\
Name of authorizing subrecipicnt official: Jcanne Robillard
Title of authorizing subrecipicnt official: CEO Q

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official: Y\
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To the Board of Directors of ' ) CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate WOLFEBORO + NORTH CONWAY

Berlin, New Hampshire DOVER » CONCORD
STRATHAM

IND DENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc: and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2018, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the related

notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsiblilty for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibliity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financlal statements based on

our audit. We conducted our audlt in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of materlal misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, \as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. _ '




Opinion y

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County, Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2019
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements In our report dated October 21, 2018. In our opinion, the
summarkzed comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a8 whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates direcily to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audlt of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconclling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in refation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our considersation of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.

dmz-ﬁlu)amd(. 8 ﬂ\M .

Prgiuntoncdl Cdvecialior
October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire



IRL-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS
2020 2018
CURRENT ASSETS . 7

Cash and cash equlvalents $ 2,257,081 $ 1400750
Restricted cash, Guardianshlp Services Program 796,837 683,863
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Property held for sale 47,000 47,000
Pledges receivable 307,017 231,181
Inventories 102,430 86,888
Prapald expenses 77.882 34,037

Tota! current assets 4,911,198 3,656,880

PROPERTY
Property and equipment 12,344,805 12,088,152
Less accumulated depreciation (5,601,844) {5,178,535)

Property, net 6,742 861 6,807,617

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 384,711 418 836
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12038771 $ 10,883,433
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.

CURRENT LIABILITIES ;
Current portion of long tenm debt § 437,843 3 148,449
Cument portion of capital lease obligations 3,554 4,870
Accounts payable 180,427 221,571
Accrued compensated absences 243,779 204,078
Accrued salarnies 49,059 210,852
Accrued expenses 137,304 89,524
Refundable advances 181,483 197,157

~ Other lisbilities 850,082 598,185
Total current (labilities 2,084 411 1,674,797

LONG TERM DEBT '

Long term debt, net of curment portion 4,792 557 5,227,835
Capital lease obligations, net of cument portion - 3,355
Total liabilities 6,876,868 6,005,687

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 4,565,253 3,399,182
With donor restrictions 596,550 678,254

Total net assets 5,161,803 4 077,446
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12,038,771 $ 10,083 433

Seo Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. ANQ AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Without Donor With Donor 2020 2019
Restrictions Restrictions Tota Tote
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants and contracts B 14425841 § 483472 § 14909313  § 14475114
Program funding 1,084,133 - 1,084,123 1.167.509
Uttty programs 1923853 - 1923653 1,287,103
in-kind contributions 2 455826 - 455,828 477167
Contributions 328,215 . 326.215 230,886
Fundrelsing 32544 - 32,544 39,303
Rental income - 635,559 - 635,559 625.048
Interest income 923 - 823 843
Galin (loes) on disposal of property 2225 - 2,225 (32,892)
Loss on write down of property heid for sale - - {255492)
Other revanua 4379 2 4379 196,364
Tolal revenues and other support 18,891,298 483472 19,374,770 18,210,851
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 585,176 (565,178) - -
Total revenues, other support, and
nel sssets released from restrictions 10,456 474 (B1,704) 19,374,770 18,210,851
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Progrem Services:
Agency Fund 1,047,356 - 1,047 356 950,639
Head Start , 2,769,085 - 2,760,085 2,758,782
Guardianship 760,507 - 760,597 767.241
Transpartation - 891,504 - 001,504 916,089
Volunteer 04,845 - 04,849 110,408
Workforos Development 36,114 - 346,114 354,283
Camoll County Dental 653,810 - 853,810 T47.474
Support Center 558,244 . 550,244 355,208
Homeless 800,148 B 800,148 714,068
Energy snd Community Development 7,824,201 - 7.824201 7,788,660
Eldes 1.149,136. - 1,149,138 1,191,571
Housing Services 220,900 - 220,900 172,852
Total program services 17,224,820 - 17,224,920 16,835,151
Supporting Activilies:
General and administrative 1,082,613 . 1.062,613 . 1,032,207
Fundralsing 2,880 - 2880 2,805
Tota! supporting activilies 1,085,493 - 1,085,493 1,042 102
Total funclional expenses 18,200,413 . 18,200,413 17,877,263
CHANGE N NET ASSETS 1,168,081 (81.704) 1,084 357 333,568
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,389,192 678,254 4,077 446 3743 848
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR §__ 4686253 $ 508 550 $ 5161803 § 4077448

See Motos to Consolidated Financlal Statements



IRL-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM.INC, AND AEFILIATE

CONSOULIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in nel assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

(Gain) loss on disposal of property

Loss on write down of property heid for sate
(Increase) decrease [n sasets:

Accounts recaivable

Pledges receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued salajies

Accrued expenses

Refundabla advances

Other liabifities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Procaeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment on demand note payable
Repayment on long-term debt
Repaymenl on capita! lease obligations
NET CASH USED [N FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for.
Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Property donated

See Notes to Consolidatod Financial Statsments

2020 2018
$ 1084357 § 333598
436,197 448,558
(2.225) 32,892
. 255 492
(48,789) (117,426)
(75,856) (18,854)
(16,544) 1,683
(43,845) (8,397)
(41,144) (15,705)
39,700 858
(161,893) 23,444
47,780 (42,364}
(15.684) 6,088
252,787 211,027
1,454 851 1,110,892
4,485 14,283
(273,711) (85,688)
{269,216) (81,305)
- (518,022)
(145,884) (141,273)
(4,671) (4,448)
(160,555) (661,741)
1,035,080 357,846
2,403,649 2,035,603
S 3438720 $ 2403649
$ 131878 § 152078
s - §$ 18830
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, [nc. controls 100% of the voting power of Comerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Comerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Comerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of actlvities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management

support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors. '

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization’s real estate property.

Head Start
Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and

their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early leaming, heaith and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral heaith and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.




Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and

development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship '
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian

services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
{developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain Injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer’s, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 413
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation
The Organization's fransit program provides various transportation

services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical faciliies outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other, activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization’s fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offars transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 27,855 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.




The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for ‘Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
. healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental Insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service

and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northem Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisls
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment, emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless .

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation. services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Enerqy Assistance and O ch

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy “assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as ‘well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

10




Low-Income Weathernization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder
The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community

dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver

supports.

Housing Services

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. (Comerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Comerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Comerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform  Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Cornerstone's
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

1




Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation
The financlal statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities

according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions Include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used al the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $586,550 and $678,254
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements . 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5to 8.5 years
Furmniture and equipment 5to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy
Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the

Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

13



Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $181,483 and $197,157 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
retums in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2016.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe théy have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan
The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of

Section 403(b) of the Intemal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are empioyed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.
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Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair

value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported -as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Givé
Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the

conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounis are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due In future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2020 and 2018.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $307,017 and $231,161,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated

Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financlal statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

16



Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activites have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporling services based on actual or estimated time

employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheset.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation _expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the

statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building inciude
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.
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The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an Indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 10.4%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was approximately 10.82%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising Is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $25,483 and

$11,698, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
*Simplifying the. Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.” The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2020 and 2019.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statément of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement of
cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash and
restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents
when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the Organization’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented. ‘
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NOTE 2.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of
FASB ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and. the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting
standard is meant to help not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the
transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional.
ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines whether a resource provider
is receiving commensurate value in retumn for a grant. If the resource provider does
receive commensurate value from the grant reciplent, the transaction is an
exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB
ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the
JAransfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending June
30, 2020 and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material
impact to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no
adjustment to opening net assets was recorded.
Other Matters '
The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-18) and measures fo prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of govemmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Organization,
particularly over the near to medium term.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:

2020 . 2018
Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Accounts receivable 1,322,852 1,274,083
Pledges receivable 307,017 231,161
Total financial assets 3,886,950 2805094
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NOTE 3.

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year: .
Net assets with donor restrictions 596,550 678,254
Less net assets with time restrictions to be _
met in less than a year (410,015) (665.176)
Amounts not available within one year 186,535 113,078

Financial assets available to meet general -

expenditures over the next twelve months  §__3.700413 $ 2792916

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financlal assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,860,000 and $2,786,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2020 and 2018.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. Al
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was approximately $2,653,000 and
$1,750,000, respectively, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of

cash flows as of June 30:

2020 2018

Cash, operations $ 2,257,081 $ 1,400,750
Restricted cash, current 796,937 583,963
Restricted cash, long term 384.711 418,936
Total cash and restricted cash $ 3438729 $2.403 649

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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NOTE 4.

NOTESS.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $20,040 and $20,010, respectively.
The Organization has made all of thelr scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as

part of a bond Issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2020 and 2019 was $174,626 and $174,451, respectively, and the Organization
was In compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabiliies. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2020 and 2018 was $786,937 and $583,863, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $796,937 and $583,963, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale at year end. This was donated to another non-profit
Organization during the year ended June 30,2020.

Certain cash accounts related to Comerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of MHousing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $180,045 and $179,277, respectively. See Note 15.

INVENTORY

In 2020 and 2019, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $102,430 and $85,886, respectively.

ACCRUED EARNED TIME
For the years ending June 30, 2020 and 2019, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2020 and

2019, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its

employees had earned and vested in the amount of $243,779 and $204,079,
respectively.
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Capltalized Accumulated Net

Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,810,288 $ 3,753,302 $ 6,056,886

Equipment 2,105,850 1,848,642 257,308
Construction

in progress 4,727 - 4,727

Land 423 840 - 423,840

$£12.344800 £3.001944 30742001
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net

Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 0,709,749 $ 3,469,618 § 6,240,131

Equipment 1,950,063 1,708,917 241,146
Construction

in progress 2,500 - 2,500

Land 423,840 - 423,840

$12086.152  £0.178533 $8.907.017

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which -are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization’s
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$435,310 and $447 669, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounting
to $47.000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of

this property was $255,492 in 2018.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 consisted of
the following:
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Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027.

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first morigages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
instaliments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly instaliments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly instaliments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020.

Note payable to a financing company requinng 72
monthly instaliments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final instaliment due February 2023.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
instaliments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023.
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307,719

4,478

4,228

3,848
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7,294

387,227

$ 124,867

328,896

9,618

7,642

7,385

2,331

9,739

395,429



2020 2019
Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040. 2,547,308 2,634,595
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance Is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,817,600
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage Is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047, 250,000 250,000
Total long term debt before unamortized debt
Issuance costs 5,241,331 5,388,102
Unamortized deferred financing costs (10,831) (11.818)
Total long term debt 5,230,400 5,376,264
Less current portion due within one year (437.843) {148,448)
24.702.897 $5.227.835
The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:
Years ending
June 30 Amount
2021 $ 437843
2022 123,107
2023 485,389
2024 118,243
2025 122,486
Thereafter 3,954,253
£.5241.331 -

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account

with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

~
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NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Orgamzatlon leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2020 and 2019, consisted of

the following:
2020 2019
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly instalilments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 1213 $§ 3201
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 944 2,261
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.8918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copler and will mature in May 2021. 1,397 2673
3,554 8,225
Less current portion (3,554) (4,870)
3 : 23399
The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2020 were as
follows: :
Year ending
June 30 Amount
2021 D4

24



NOTE 8.

NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Bomowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2020 and 2018. The line is subject to renewal each

January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. The unsecured
revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year ended June 30, 2018.

OPERATING LEASES
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,004 and $181,127, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2021 . $ 127,803
2022 7,321
$.135.124
IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions accordlng to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Stari, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparalive market wage for similar

paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facllities utllized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonabie
determination.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
approximately $14,380,020 (74%) and $13,951,828 (77%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, approximately 68% and 69%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Comerstone Housing North, Inc.’s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Temporary Municipal Funding $ 307,017 §$ 231,161
FAP 102,998 117,470
Restricted Buildings 85,713 87,541
DOE 46,287 -
FAP/EAP 24,350 11,290
Loans - HSGP 22,029 19,907
RSVP Program Funds 5,887 7,056
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,571
RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 -
Loans - HHARLF . 104 -
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NOTE 14.

(4

BWP/HRRP Program 84

10 Bricks Shelter Funds _ - 142,190
Support Center - . 25,939
Weatherization' - - 25,000
Senior Meals - 5,130
Head Start - 3,999

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 596550 $ 678254

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance
The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the

terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencles
On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure

ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills

Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In.a letter dated May 2, -
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department’s satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30,
2020, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.
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NOTE 15.

/

REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Comerstone Housing North, Inc.’s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $155,278 and $128,407 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. HUD-restricted .deposits generally are not

available for operating purposes.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $31,043 and '$46,514 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2018,
raspectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The palicies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual recelipts account for equipment.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

NOTE 17.

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassiﬁ_ed to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28,
2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENOITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND RON-FEDERAL AWARDS
£OR THE YEAR ENOTD JUNVE 29, 1979

FEGERAL GRANTORD
CFDA PASS THROUGH IDENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL ORANTORTROGRAM TITLE NUNBER GRANTOR'S MANTE NUMBER EXPENDITURES
U.S, Dypeytme of Hewtth end Hymem Byrvicwy
Musd Start 83.600 01CH10000-05-00 s 1,598,937
Hesd Start $3.600 01CH10000-08-00 1,042 272
TOTAL 2,838,709
Lowetncome Home Energy Axsistance [ =87 ] fiste of New Hampabirs Offcs of Eneryy end Plenning C- 10T INHLIEA 120,882
Lowdrcoma Home Energy Assistance 1588 State of New Hampshire Office of Enargy and Panning G208 1NHLIEA 5404 284
Low-incorne Home Energy Assistance 0.868 Simte of New Hampshire Office of Energy arnd Plarning G-19BTNHLIEA 10358420 B B2S
Low-ncome Home Energy Amsistance 83,588 State of New Hampshive Offics of Erergy srd Plarving G-2081WHLIEA 1058420 246 60
TOTAL 3,836, 364
AGING CLUSTER
Special Programs for the Aging - Tie 11, Pant 8 - Grants for Supporive Services and Sanior Cersers (BEAS) T304 State of New Harpstirs Office of Energy snd Planning 1BAANHTISS T247
Special Programa for e Aging - Thie 61, Pan B - Grants for Supporfive Bervices and Sankor Centars (Br. Whaets) $3.044 Sinte of Mew Harpshire Duperimert of Health and Huren Bervices 512500352 112 891
TOTAL 129,978
Speciat Programns for the Aging - Tiie [L Pant C - Nutrition Services (Congragate & HD Mesis) 83,045 Strta of New Hampshirs Depariment of Heath and Hurman Services 841500308 e
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PROFESSIONAL \SSOCIATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO » NORTH CONWAY
DOVER » CONCORD

IRL-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited. in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable o financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tr-County
Community Action Program, Inc..(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting '

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinlon on the
financia! statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is 8 deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and comected on a
timely basis. A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this
gection and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contral that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s

financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report g .
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to-provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemnment Auditing Standards In considering the organization’s internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

540’;:4, W g Poturts
October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federa! programs for the year
ended June 30, 2020. Tr-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibliity
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility. is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Communily Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary In the circumstances. ;

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.




Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30; 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective Intemal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In_planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and materia! effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal controf over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance ks a deficiency, or a combination of deficlencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in Intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over. compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to ‘identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

M”@Waa Aot
Protcsdconac Qidocalidv

October 28, 2020
North Conway, New Hampshire
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8.
9.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Malters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

No Instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit

are reported in the Indspendent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Servioes:. LIHEAP — CFDA #83.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, CSBG — CFDA #93.569

New Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance (non-Federal)
The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was _5750,000.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc..was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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List of Key Personnel and Salaries:
Christine Lee — Director of Transportation - $41,600 annual salary
Jeanene McDonald — Operations Manager - $35,360 annual salary




Christine A. Lee
Objectives
1 am looking for a work environment that will allow me to grow in my career as well as challenge

me. | have many years of clerical experience that will allow me to learn any job quickly and
easily.

Education
June 2005 | Diploma—Mountain View Jr/Sr H)gh Schaol Kingsley, PA
e Magna cum laude graduate ' i

April 2019 |Southern New Hampshire University, Online Program
e BSin Accounting

Experience

July 2020 - Present| Director of Transportation
Tri-County Transit | Berlin, NH

e Supervise all personnel, programs, and projects under Transit Services

e Responsible for recruiting, hiring, training, supervision, and discharging of program
personnel.

e Oversee, write and manage grants and financial resources to support Division Programs

o Develop & implement strategies for improving program deliverables and program fiscal
performance

o Develop program fundraising and marketing strategies

e Provide regular supervision to Program Managers that includes joint review of program
fiscal reports and budget performance.

» Represent programs in the Division through participation in state and local initiatives
relative to program/division goals for service delivery and is consistent with furthering
the mission of the Division, and TCCAP as a whole.

o Responsible for general oversight of Programs within the Division, allocation of
resources, revenues, expenditures and budget performance.

¢ Develop program budgets with Program Managers. Monitor budget performance and
take corrective action as necessary, in order to meet program fiscal goals.

o Handles all billing for Transit division




L ]

Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices
Bank deposits as needed
Records & processes all invoices that are received — sends for payment

Other duties as assigned

July 2019 — June 2z020|Administrative Assistant (40 hours per week)
Tri-County Transit | Berlin, NH

Handles all billing for Transit division

Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices

Bank deposits as needed

Records & processes all invoices that are received — sends for payment

Schedules bus routes for entire fleet (g buses)

Handles processing of daily bus schedules & ensures they are received by the proper
drivers

Arranges for volunteer drivers to assist clients with long distance medical trips as needed
Provides back up for Director and Operations Manager when they are not in office
Works on admissions for Town and County Funding, attends meetings, follows up on
approved admissions

Other duties as assigned

November 2018 - Present| Bookkeeper & Dispatch 140 hours per week)
Tri-County Transit | Berlin, NH

Handles all billing for Transit division

Compile monthly numbers and prepare proper invoices

Bank deposits as needed

Records & processes all invoices that are received — sends for payment

Schedules bus routes for entire fleet (9 buses)

Handles processing of daily bus schedules & ensures they are received by the proper
drivers

Arranges for volunteer drivers to assist clients with long distance medical trips as needed
Other duties as assigned

June 2016-November 2018 |Docket Clerk (40+ hours per week)
Vermont Superior Court | Guildhall, VT

Responsible for entering new cases in the Criminal, Civil, Family and Probate dockets
Record court hearings

Prepare paperwork for mailing to parties

Prepare Motions that are received for the Judge to review

Prepare weekly deposits

Handle after hour Relief from Abuse call outs

Assist clients as they appear at the courthouse or when they call in with questions




Refer clients to proper resources for legal advice

Assist in other courts (Caledonia County, St. Johnsbury, VT)

Other duties as assigned

Prepare & review documents for accuracy prior to submitting to Judge

Compile data and file work from outside attorneys to re-create files destroyed in April
2018 fire

Scptember 2015-May 2016|Guest Services Agent (hours varied)
The Inn At Thorn Hill | Jackson, NH

Responsible for assisting guests with checking in and departing

Handled reservations over the phone as well as ones received via email

Handled guests requests as well as issues/complaints that arose

Booked dinner reservations as well as spa reservations

Responsible for scheduling meetings with staff (both in NH as well as remote with our
owner) .

September 30, 2013-June 2015|Collections Officer (40 hours per
week)
Northway Bank | Berlin, NH

Responsible for handling delinquency calls & letters for customers that are past due on
loans or have overdrawn checking & savings accounts.

Handled scheduling meetings with loan committees and board members

File claims and subsequent paperwork with the Berlin & Plymouth Small Claims Courts.
Represent Northway Bank at small claims hearings

Process foreclosure paperwork

Prepare Monthly Board Reports for the Collections Department

Gather information needed and process month end paperwork

r

March 4, 2008 — January 18, 2013 | Intake Officer-
Finance/Enforcement Officer (37.5 hours per weck)
Susquehanna County Domestic Relations | Montrose, PA

Intake Officer:

L]

Deal with clients as they walk in the door

Set up new cases & complete interviews with clients

Register orders to other counties/states; process incoming registrations
Transfer orders to other counties/states; process mcommg transfem
Deal with interstate/international cases

Finance/Enforcement Officer:

Monthly bank reconciliation paperwork
Handle all court costs billings

Daily deposits to the bank

Handle payments as they come into the office




« Enforce existing support orders
o Prepare paperwork for contempt court when defendant’s fail to pay

week)
Movie Gallery Corporation | Various locations in Pennsylvania

 Assist customers with video rentals

¢ Prepare daily deposit

« Prepare employees payroll and submit for processing
¢ Maintain accounts payable for each store I worked at
¢ Close out register at the end of shift/night

e Open & close store

¢ Hire/fire/train employees

¢ Initiated new hire orientations

¢ Order merchandise

¢ Responsible for quarterly inventory

¢ Handled weekly reporting of numbers to corporate

+ Prepared weekly schedules for employees

o Set up displays in the store according to requests from corporate
e Oversaw District and Store Mangers

were being met
» Assisted in training district and store managers

Skills

e Proficient in Microsoft Office Suites 2007 & 2010

« Proficient in data entry — quick learner of new software programs

» Fast, efficient, highly motivated worker

Comfortable using any office equipment such as a fax, scanner, copier, etc
Comfortable working individually or in a group setting

Good training skills

Highly organized and efficient worker

Comfortable with scheduling meetings online or face-to-face

**References available upon request.

December 2004-March 2008 | CSA-Regional Manager (40+ hours per

o Worked with stores within region to ensure that weekly numbers and sales promotions




JEANENE MCDONALD

® jmcdonald®@tccap.org

Professional Summary

I am one who goes above and beyond basic administrative tasks and takes on multiple projects at once.
Excellent work ethic and strength in boosting company morale. I can be put in various positions and

excel.
Skills
* Highly Motivated e Team building
® Professional e Multi-line phone proficiency
® Flexible Critical e thinker
® Accurate and detailed ® Project planning
® Excellent planner and coordinator e HIPAA compliance
® Works well under pressure Have ® some knowledge in grant writing Pleasant
e demeanor Dependable &
Work History

Operations Manager, 07/01/2017 to Current
Tri County Cap Transit - 31 Pleasant Street, Berlin, NH

Follow Department of Transportation (DOT) policies and procedures.

Lead, direct and manage fleet drivers and dispatch staff.

Hiring, training, evaluating performance from staff

Participate in the development and plan of annual budgets

Ensure operations are compliant with DOT standards for safety and insurance purposes.

Dispatcher, 04/2015 to Current 07/1/2017
Tri County Cap Transit — 31 Pleasant Street, Berlin, NH

Assign drivers routes, destinations, and timelines.

Keep in close contact with drivers who are on the road.

Proficient at using dispatch software.

Responsible for keeping, verifying, and monitoring driver daily logs.
Attend quarterly staff meetings and take minutes for those meetings.
Effectively work with co-workers

Provided outstanding customer service.




Assistant guest services manager, 11/2014 to 04/2015
Wildcat Mountain Ski Area - Gorham, NH

Cross-trained and backed up other customer service managers.

Hired seasonal staff.

Made out weekly schedules.

Oversees all guest services operations, including front desk, reservations, and ticket sales.
Ensure quality and guest satisfaction.

Good through knowledge of scheduling software.

Daily Deposits for all departments.

Assistant manager, 04/2012 to 01/2014
Toys R Us - Settlers Green, North Conway NH

Organized private mailbox system using mailbox manager software.
Reported to the district manager regarding all store and staff issues.
Managed staff of 4 sales associates, 2 team leaders.

Hiring staff and making work schedules.

Daily Deposits.

Housing coordinator, 03/1999 to 09/2011
Northern Human Services — Berlin, NH

Planned and coordinated logistics and materials for board meetings, committee meetings and
staff events.

Ordered and distributed office supplies while adhering to a fixed office budget.
Screened applicant resumes and coordinated both phone and in-person interviews.
Drafted biweekly time sheets for Twelve (12) employees.

Organized all new hire, security and temporary paperwork.

Had to adhere to state rules and regulations.

Follow state procedures on running a state funded facility.

Follow a tight budget, to kecp in state guidelines.

Worked closely with other agencies.

Open lines of communications with all areas of the Agency.

Responsible'for working closely with the case management and intake staff.
Develop, implement and/or supervise programs and services in support of
assigned housing program

Complied with state and Federal regulations for eligibility determination and
record-keeping.




e Prepared for state and Federal audits and provided regular reports to superiors
and the Board of Directors.

® Perform case coordination, clinician collaboration, crisis prevention, crisis interventions to at least
15 consumers living with a severe mental illness.

e Demonstrates a working knowledge of public social service programs and policies.

Education
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